

# Laughlin Town Advisory Board

August 11, 2020

## MINUTES

Board Members:	Gina Mackey – Chair- Kathy Ochs – Vice Chair – absent James Maniaci	Nile Smith-unexcused absence Herman Walker
Secretary:	Tammy Harris, (702) 298-0828 tammy.harris@clarkcountynv.gov	
Town Liaison:	Mark Robledo, (702) 298-0828 Mark.robledo@c	clarkcountynv.gov

- I. Call to Order by Chair Gina Mackey, Invocation by Pastor Doug Westly, Pledge of Allegiance led by Herm Walker.
- II. Public Comment: None
- III. Approval of Minutes for July 14, 2020 (For possible action)

Moved by: Herm Walker Action: Approved as written Vote: 3-0

IV. Approval of Minutes for July 28, 2020 (For possible action)

Moved by: James Maniaci Action: Approved as written Vote: 3-0

V. Approval of agenda for August 11, 2020, and hold, combine or delete any items (For possible action)

Moved by: James Maniaci Action: Removal of item VI. #14 Vote: 3-0

- VI. Informational Items
  - 1. Receive a report from Lt. Jeff Hewes with Metro Police regarding activity and statistics during the past

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MARILYN KIRKPATRICK, CHAIR - LAWRENCE WEEKLY, Vice-Chair LARRY BROWN - JAMES GIBSON - JUSTIN JONES – MICHAEL NAFT - TICK SEGERBLOM YOLANDA KING, County Manager Revised month and other area crime concerns. (For discussion only)

In Lt. Hewes's absence, James Maniaci read the report.

July 2020 Statistics:

Calls for Service: 378, down 0.26% from this time last year Traffic Citations: 363 DUIs: 1 Battery Domestic Violence Arrests: 9 Bookings: 40 Juvenile Citations: 0

2. Receive a report from Nevada Highway Patrol regarding activity and statistics during the last month and other public safety concerns. (For discussion only)

No report

3. Receive a report from Clark County Fire Department regarding calls for service during the past month and other fire prevention issues. (For discussion only)

Deputy Chief Thomas Touchstone provided the July's report.

Statistics July 2020:

Station 76: Total responses: 178

Station 85: Total responses: 128

Total July calls: 306

Deputy Chief Touchstone addressed the call request for Bullhead City with a verbal report.

Due to how the call volume is filtered, it's difficult to filter calls into Bullhead City. The calls are not going to addresses but to GPS coordinates, primarily on the river or the desert area around the Dam and Lake Mohave.

There were twelve total incidents in Bullhead from January 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020, five of which involved dispatching a vehicle. All calls were medical in nature and located around Lake Mohave, Davis Dam or on the river.

During the same time period, there were eleven total incidents and seven cancels in which Bullhead City responded to Laughlin.

Deputy Chief Touchstone provided updates to the recent fires and how the fires were controlled. The ladder truck is currently in the shop for an overhaul. A computer part is needed and they are waiting for delivery of this part. Delivery of the truck is estimated for late August or September.

4. Receive a report from Greg Turner with Clark County Water Reclamation District regarding the status of the wastewater system. (For discussion only)

In Greg Turner's absence, Herm Walker read the July report.

Statistics: July 2020

The Laughlin Water Reclamation Facility had an average of 1.86 MGD, producing clean water returned to the Colorado River. Flow saw a decrease of 150,000 gallons per day from this time last year.

Sewer Service Complaints: None Odor Complaints: None Call Before You Dig: 38 C.B.Y.D. Laughlin tickets received for July 2020.

5. Receive a report from Jason Bailey with Big Bend Water District regarding the status of the water system. (For discussion only)

Jason Bailey provided the July 2020 report.

Diversions:

July 2020: 393 acre-feet 2020 YTD total diversions: 1,985 acre-feet 2019 YTD total diversions: 2,089 acre-feet

Jason Bailey addressed a question Mr. Maniaci had a few months ago, regarding Laughlin's unused water allotment. As a reminder every year the total annual diversion given to Big Bend is 15,532 acre feet. In 2019, the usage was 3,639 acre feet, which is lower than previous years. Water that is not used by SNWA members and left in the system is banked for future resources. Unused water may be available by other SNWA members and used as needed. Nevada receives 300,000 acre feet from the Colorado River every year. Last year, Nevada used approximately 244,000 acre feet.

James Maniaci asked for additional information regarding the banking of water. Mr. Bailey said he would refer Mr. Maniaci to the Water Resource Plan on the website. Water banking is water that is left in Lake Meade and can be allocated to other states. Mr. Maniaci said the water that is left over from the 15,532 each year is not commutatively added to what Laughlin could have for the future. Mr. Bailey said, "No it is not." Any water saved is not for a specific member agency.

As COVID-19 activities continue to affect communities, our commitment to provide a safe and reliable water supply remains a top priority for the Big Bend Water District. The BBWD maintains a robust emergency response and readiness plans to help maintain water system operations during natural disaster, community-wide illness, and other emergency situations. We are closely monitoring the situation and are taking the appropriate precautionary measures in our offices and in the field. Please be assured that our staff will continue to work to ensure the system remains stable and operational during these trying times.

6. Receive a report from University of Nevada Cooperative Extension regarding the status of programs and upcoming activities. (For discussion only)

Hayley Maio provided the July report.

The Stay Camp went very well and the kids had a great time. The materials were delivered to the kids every day by Will Douglas and met on ZOOM twice a day.

The Master Gardner's will resume their meetings in October.

7. Receive a report from Jackie Mazzeo with Laughlin Chamber of Commerce regarding current and upcoming business activities in Laughlin. (For discussion only)

Jackie Mazzeo provided the July reports.

### **Updates:**

The Chamber would ask the Board to assist in recovering the Marriage License services at the Government Center. Destination Wedding' are very difficult to book when the Bride and Groom have to travel to Las Vegas first.

### **Community Achievement Awards – October 24, 2020**

Planning for this event continues and adjustments will be made to meet the guidelines set by the Governor. Nominations are being accepted and the Judges Panel has been selected.

**Freedom of Expression – Tentative Date November 5, 2020** Golden Nugget Casino Resort Gold Diggers

**Jingle Mingle Christmas Celebration – December 10, 2020** Aquarius Casino Resort Windows on the River Buffet 5-8pm

<u>Mixers:</u> Networking and Educating – None planned at this time

### <u>Membership:</u>

**Quarter ending June** 282 Active Members 3 New members 26% are Laughlin Members

A letter was read regarding the impacts of the Lake Powell Pipeline to the lower Colorado River region. Ms. Mazzeo provided information where residents can comment and object to the pipeline. According to Ms. Mazzeo, Commissioner Naft gave his permission for the LTAB members to provide comment regarding the pipeline individually and make note you are a LTAB member. For a copy of the complete letter contact this office or the Laughlin Chamber.

Ms. Mazzeo advised that Governor Sisolak provided Battle Born face mask and will be available at the Laughlin Chamber.

James Maniaci inquired about the new members and how many were Laughlin businesses. Ms. Mazzeo said two.

Mr. Maniaci said that given the financial situation in the County is it feasible that the County would reopen the marriage license office at this time. Ms. Mazzeo said yes. She stated that she believes some of the Laughlin County employees don't have enough to do and can provide this service.

Mr. Maniaci asked how many acre feet would the Lake Powell pipeline pump. Ms. Mazzeo said she didn't have those numbers; only what would be lost and those numbers are in the letter.

8. Receive a report from Jackie Mazzeo with the Laughlin Tourism Commission regarding current and

upcoming events and activities. (For discussion only)

ROCKETS OVER THE RIVER – Fireworks Displays Labor Day Weekend – Actual Holiday date has not been determined New Year's Eve for 2021 – Actual time has not been determined www.Visitlaughlin.com

BEST IN THE DESERT – The Jagged X National Desert Cup \$18K Prize Money Off Road Races Motorcycle, Quad and UTV - 17 mile loop 4WP Youth UTV Race Championship Series on Friday September 25-27, 2020 https://bitd.com/race-events

SPARTAN GAMES - Obstacle course event for competitors Elite, Para and kids - CANCELLED November 13-15, 2020 https://www.spartan.com/en/race/detail/5208/overview

Run Laughlin 5K, 12K and Half Marathon "Two States, Two Time Zones and ONE DAM GREAT RACE" Saturday, December 5, 2020 www.mercuryevent.com

SNORE – McKenzie's Rage at the River – Off Road Races December 10-13, 2020 Laughlin Event Site/Park https://www.snoreracing.net

9. Receive a report from Parks & Recreation regarding the status of programs and upcoming activities. (For discussion only)

A'Lonn Bilbray provided the report.

Due to COVID-19, Zero monthly building visits.

No upcoming events

Updates:

Senior Games were cancelled due to a decrease in participation and a decrease in sponsorship. The games will be evaluated for 2022.

Spirit Mountain Activity Center will remain closed.

Boys & Girls Club:

Full day schedule will resume August 17<sup>th</sup>, Monday – Friday, 7:30am-6:00pm. Cost is \$40 per week, per child with a \$10 fee for new membership. New membership forms will need to be submitted for all children including those that attended the summer session.

Currently options are being considered for Virtual Field Trips.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MARILYN KIRKPATRICK, CHAIR - LAWRENCE WEEKLY, Vice-Chair LARRY BROWN - JAMES GIBSON - JUSTIN JONES – MICHAEL NAFT - TICK SEGERBLOM YOLANDA KING, County Manager Revised Herm Walker asked who promotes the Senior Games. Ms. Bilbray said the Parks and Recreation. "What is done in terms of marketing to precipitate participation?" Ms. Bilbray said she can find out and get back to him next month.

Contact Info: Shelly Gulotta, Supervisor A'Lonn Bilbray, Recreation Specialist Laughlin Office: (702) 298-3413

10. Receive a report from Laughlin school system regarding the status of programs and upcoming activities. (For discussion only)

No report

11. Receive a report from Tanya Brown-Wirth with Laughlin Library regarding current and upcoming activities. (For discussion only)

No report

12. Receive a report from James Maniaci regarding Clark County Master Plan and Title 30 Development Code Rewrite Committee. (For discussion only)

James Maniaci provided an update to the long range master plan schedule. Changes were made to phases 1-3. Mr. Maniaci provided information with the changes and a project schedule. The overall time line has not changed. Phase one started in January 2020 and concluded in July 2020. Phase two started in February of 2020 which should conclude October 2022. Phase three began in April 2020 and concludes in November. For a copy of the full report contact this office.

13. Announcements of upcoming neighborhood meetings and County or community meetings and events. (For discussion only)

None

14. Receive a presentation to recognize and honor a recipient for their dedication and extensive community service. (For discussion only)

Removed from agenda.

VII. Planning & Zoning:

Current Zoning Items: None

Previous Zoning Actions:

(For additional information see Clark County web site on the Internet at: <u>http://www.clarkcountynv.gov/Depts/public\_communications/Pages/Agendas.aspx</u> then go to NOFA (Notice of Final Action) on the month and date the item was heard and look for the item number (i.e. UC-0000-11).

#### <u>WS-20-0282-SHIPKEY A H & B A JAN 12 1989 TR & HERRICK HAL TRS:</u> <u>WAIVERS OF DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS</u> for the following: 1) eliminate parking lot landscaping;

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MARILYN KIRKPATRICK, CHAIR - LAWRENCE WEEKLY, Vice-Chair LARRY BROWN - JAMES GIBSON - JUSTIN JONES – MICHAEL NAFT - TICK SEGERBLOM YOLANDA KING, County Manager Revised and 2) permit alternative landscaping adjacent to streets.

**DESIGN REVIEW** for landscaping areas in conjunction with marijuana establishments on 20.0 acres in a C-2 (General Commercial) Zone. Generally located on the north side of Bruce Woodbury Drive and the east side of Thomas Edison Drive within Laughlin. To the BCC 08/19/2020

No final action at the time of this posting.

- VIII. General Business: None
- IV. Public Comment:

Bruce Henry, Laughlin resident, voiced his concerns regarding the generating station and asked for an update.

Fred Wells, Laughlin resident, voiced his concerns regarding the road conditions in Laughlin. He also had a concern regarding the Garces Monument that could have hazardous consequences for visitors and requested it moved to a safer location.

James Maniaci spoke about an email he sent out to the public of his pending move out of state as of September 1, 2020. His statement today was to rescind that email until the end of the year and keep his residency in Laughlin until after the November election.

- X. Next Meeting Date: September 08, 2020.
- XI. Adjournment: 2:43 pm

These minutes are in draft form and will be formally approved at the September 08, 2020 meeting. Any corrections to these minutes will be reflected in the meeting minutes of the October 13, 2020 meeting.

To listen to the audio recording of the Laughlin Town Advisory Board go to: <u>http://www.clarkcountynv.gov/administrative-services/laughlin/Pages/LaughlinTownAdvisoryBoard.aspx</u>